
Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 
MINUTES OF MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA  

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
The Board of Commissioners of Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, met in Budget/Public Policy 
Session in Conference Center Room 267 on the 2nd floor of the Charlotte-Mecklenburg 
Government Center located at 600 East Fourth Street, Charlotte, North Carolina at 2:33 p.m. on 
Tuesday, December 10, 2024. 
 

ATTENDANCE 

 
Present:  Chair Mark Jerrell, Vice-Chair Leigh Altman  

and Commissioners George Dunlap, Arthur Griffin,  
Vilma D. Leake, Laura J. Meier, Elaine Powell,  
Susan Rodriguez-McDowell, Yvette Townsend-Ingram 
County Manager Dena R. Diorio 
County Attorney Tyrone C. Wade 
Clerk to the Board Kristine M. Smith 
Deputy Clerk to the Board Arlissa Eason 

 
Absent:  None 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER  

 
The meeting was called to order by Chair Mark Jarrell, followed by introductions and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag. 
 
 
24-0700           2025 BOCC MEETING SCHEDULE AMENDMENT 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Meier, seconded by Commissioner Griffin, and unanimously 
carried, to amend the 2025 Mecklenburg Board of County Commissioners Meeting Schedule. 
 
Background: The 2025 BOCC Meeting Schedule was approved at the December 3, 2024, BOCC 
Regular Meeting. 
 
 
 
The following change was proposed: 
 
Move the scheduled (Regular Meeting) from Tuesday, November 4, 2025, to Wednesday, 
November 5, 2025. 
 
 Change is recommended due to the 2025 General Elections occurring on Tuesday, 
November 4, 2025. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 

 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 
 
 
24-0701           UPDATE ON MEDIC AND FIRST RESPONDER SERVICES 
  
The Board received an update from the Executive Director of Medic, John (JP) Peterson. 
 
John (JP) Peterson gave the verbal presentation. 
 
Background:  Medic Executive Director John (JP) Peterson will brief the Board of County 
Commissioners regarding ongoing discussions between Medic and Charlotte Fire Department on 
the respective roles within the EMS System.   
 
Mr. Peterson gave the Board an overview of the work done by Medic and first responder 
services and provided an update on discussions that had been ongoing with the Charlotte Fire. 
 
Mr. Peterson described the difference between the services that Medic provided regarding EMS 
versus the service that their first responder partner, Charlotte Fire Department, provided in 
Mecklenburg County. He said Medic was the County’s primary 911 and non-emergency 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

ambulance service. He said that besides being the ambulance provider, they were also their 
EMS authority.  
 
Mr. Peterson said Charlotte Fire Department was one of those contracts they had agreements 
with to provide services such as basic life support and was an integral part of their response 
plan. He said their partnership provided some of the highest cardiac arrest survival rates 
anywhere in the country, and their agreement with Charlotte Fire Department had been 
ongoing for at least 28 years. 
 
Mr. Peterson said the most recent iteration of the agreement was signed in 2017 and had not 
since been reevaluated. He said in July 2024; they received a letter from the Charlotte Fire 
Department stating their intention to end their agreement with a 180-day notice and to go back 
and discuss the terms of the contract with revisions. He said that was a requirement in the 
contract, so if any partner wanted to make a change or end that current agreement, they must 
provide a 180-day notice.  
 
Mr. Peterson said the current contract was set to expire on January 8th, 2025, during which 
time Medic had been doing their due diligence and attended several meetings regarding the 
topic. He said he had also met with the fire chief over the last four months as well. He said he 
wanted the Board to know they were working on a memorandum of understanding for 
extending the agreement so they could move beyond January 8th and continue to discuss what 
a final agreement would look like. He said it would also allow them to evaluate all facets of the 
agreement during the county’s regular budget cycle. He said the Memorandum of 
Understanding was presented to the City that week, and they were awaiting their response.  
 
Comments 
 
Commissioner Dunlap asked if the update was to inform them that they were working through 
the contract revisions. Mr. Peterson said yes, the contract would end on January 8th and were 
working to extend that with the City. 
 
Commissioner Griffin asked if they would get feedback regarding callbacks when the contract 
changed. County Manager Diorio said yes, but it wasn’t part of the contract. She said they could 
provide that information. 
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked if this was a budgetary new-terms discussion. Mr. 
Peterson said it was both monetary and non-monetary. 
 

 
24-0698 MECKLENBURG COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS’ 2025 LEGISLATIVE 

AGENDA 
 
 
The Board discussed and adopted the Board’s 2025 Legislative Agenda. 
 
Lisette Nimmons, Intergovernmental Affairs Manager gave the presentation. 
 
Background:  The Proposed 2025 Legislative Agenda was considered by the Intergovernmental 
Relations Committee on December 5, 2024, and will be presented to the full board for 
consideration and approval. The Legislative Agenda will also be shared with the Mecklenburg 
County Legislative and Congressional Delegations.   
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Comments 
 
Commissioner Altman said she was proud of the work that had been laid out. 
 
Commissioner Leake thanked the presenter and said she was waiting to see what the US 
president was going to do. She said she was worried based on the recommendations and that 
they kept adding to them. She said they needed to make sure they kept retirement and social 
security, and the committees reporting back would inform them of what the people were 
saying. 
 
Commissioner Dunlap said they wanted to be clear that they could push the agenda two ways 
and pursue things separately apart from NCACC through Mecklenburg County’s delegation. He 
said he’d pursued the length of service for Mecklenburg County commissioners for 16 years. He 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

said they were the only ones in the state that didn’t have four-year terms and the community 
didn’t understand the need for four-year terms. He said they could pursue this by a referendum 
or legislatively and asked that they discuss this issue. He said it was also time to take a different 
approach to pursue it as well.  
 
Commissioner Griffin thanked the presenter and said a lot of their interest as an urban county, 
included elements of the level 15 waiver, and hoped it occurred. He said he joined 
Commissioner Dunlap concerning terms as some of the items under health would be worth 
pursuing. 
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell thanked the presenter and said, regarding the levels of 
engagement, asked how direct advocacy was different than going under the opposed column 
and asked if they had ever gone against or opposed legislation (speaking to a vote of stripping 
the governor’s power tomorrow). Ms. Nimmons said they were essentially the ones leading the 
effort when it comes to opposed/against. She said they were supporting other organizations but 
it was not necessarily something they were leading. To her second question – she said yes. she 
gave an example of Dr. Washington writing a letter of opposition. 
 
County Manager Diorio said if it impacted the County, they would involve themselves, but if it 
didn’t, they wouldn’t get involved. 
 
Commissioner Townsend-Ingram said she attended a town hall meeting, and they gave 
information on school voucher programs, the priority of which was to make sure as many kids 
took advantage of them. She asked if it was possible for them to advocate for a certain number 
of children across Mecklenburg to attend Title 1 schools or capping private school costs.  She 
said she would like to see them advocate for kids who couldn’t afford the full cost of school. 
Ms. Nimmons said that was specifically for private schools, and they only dealt with the public.   
 
County Manager Diorio said she would check with CMS to get their position and what that 
would mean for them if they took a position.  
 
Ms. Nimmons said they approved their agenda last night, but it didn’t mention anything, only 
funding. 
 
Commissioner Powell thanked the presenter and said she agreed with Commissioner Dunlap on 
the four-year terms. She said it was nice to have the crossover between their agenda and 
Centralinas. She said the scrap tires were important but had been wiggled out. She said she had 
been getting questions about invasive species, and the conversation grew because they had 
invasive plant and animal species. She said she wanted to make sure they had the funding 
available and what they had was only a drop in the bucket.  
 
Commissioner Meier thanked the presenter and said she supported their goals. She said she 
agreed with four-year terms and the first steps. She asked if the opt-in/opt-out was listed on 
CMS goals. Ms. Nimmons said it wasn’t, but it was in addition to Dr. Washington’s letter. 
 
Commissioner Meier asked if there was progress on his letter. Ms. Nimmons said no, but it 
would be addressed in the next session. 
 
Chair Jerrell thanked them all for their work and said they could make the agenda robust, but 
their commitment was to be intentional and provide clear direction to their delegation. He said 
they had limited tokens to present, and adding things just to add it wouldn’t be beneficial. He 
said he also agreed with Commissioner Dunlap on four-year terms. He said he would lean 
towards the legislative route and ask their delegation to push it. He asked if they viewed the 
document as something they could tweak/add to during the year. Ms. Nimmons said it was a 
fluid document, and there was the opportunity to make changes. 
 
Commissioner Dunlap said the legislative route was the best route and shared what they 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

contributed to the digital divide. He said he didn’t want to wait for another pandemic to occur 
to realize their kids did not have access to broadband and could not get the education they 
deserved. He said they should add the digital divide to their agenda to be proactive if the State 
had money to go towards that effort, to pursue it. 
 
County Manager Diorio said they didn’t contribute direct dollars, but they invested money in 
their own sphere of influence. She said she didn’t have an update on the Mayor’s efforts but 
Mecklenburg County never qualified ARPA dollars. She said they would have to see where they 
qualify.  
 
Commissioner Altman said she wanted to clarify the matter of the two-year terms, stating they 
had to be on a treadmill and how they had the distraction of having to refile in just a little over 
12 months. She asked Ms. Nimmons why the statewide organizations of commissioners didn’t 
add orphan roads because there were thousands. Ms. Nimmons said they would have to think 
of the direct vote needed. She said it wasn’t an overwhelming majority that voted over the 
item.  
 
Commissioner Leake said they had been asking since she had been on the Board to adjust their 
terms. She said they needed to see who didn’t support it, and she thought they could make it 
happen. She said she wanted to ensure they had qualified people in the school system and 
asked what they could do to deter violence in the confines of their community.  
 
Chair Jerrell said the legislative agenda had a portion that spoke to education and public safety. 
 
Commissioner Griffin said it would help if they discussed items that dealt with health in the 
legislative package. He said they needed to think regionally, and when he spoke to the towns 
while running, they spoke about the need for affordable housing or protecting the housing of 
those already in their homes. He said there may be a path forward if they got the support of the 
small towns and seniors living in them. He said that although there were a lot of Republicans in 
the general assembly, this might give them an appetite.  
 
Commissioner Powell said the goals were not important just locally but also regionally.  
 
Commissioner Townsend-Ingram asked about supporting and amending the anti-pension 
spiking contribution-based benefit cap. She said she was concerned with any sort of cap and 
asked for additional information to be sent to her for clarification. Ms. Nimmons said there 
were challenges with the cap, but she could send information. 
 
Commissioner Dunlap said his understanding was to stop people from taking advantage of it. 
Mr. Boyd said he was right, and that was the intent. He said people who got promoted in their 
career and retired at a higher salary were being subjected to the cap. He said with 29 
employees, they had paid out over $2,000,000. He said he didn’t think the intent was to penalize 
them. 
 
Commissioner Dunlap asked if they could present a solution to that problem to the Board so 
they could support it. Mr. Boyd said they would need to find a way to prevent the adverse 
impact. He said they needed to bring attention to the existence of the issue.  
 
Commissioner Meier said orphaned roads were heavily debated, as they kept talking about it 
and felt it would eventually go in their favor. 
 
Commissioner Jerrell said they had been trying to bring visibility to the Homestead Exemption 
Act for years.  
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Dunlap, seconded by Commissioner Griffin, and 
unanimously carried, to pursue four-year terms through a legislative fix.  
 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

Motion was made by Commissioner Meier, seconded by Commissioner Dunlap, and 
unanimously carried, to amend and adopt the Board's 2025 Legislative Agenda. 
 
 
24-0639 2024 MECKLENBURG COUNTY COMMUNITY SURVEY 
 
The Board received as information the results from the 2024 Community Survey. 
 
Background:   Each year, the County’s Office of Strategy & Innovation administers the 
Community Survey to gather data on Mecklenburg County residents’ perceptions on various 
aspects of County operations, particularly the level of awareness about County services, the 
perception of the value of County services provided, level of satisfaction residents have with 
opportunities for citizen involvement, and insight into the most important issues facing 
Mecklenburg County. The presentation includes highlights of those results.  
 
Michael Griswold, MPA, Deputy Director of Strategy & Innovation gave the presentation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 
 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Comments 
 
Commissioner Meier thanked the presenter and his team. She asked if there were any open-
ended questions. Mr. Griswold said yes, but there were fewer than closed-ended questions.  
 
Commissioner Meier said it was interesting how education had dropped. She asked if the large 
cities were specifically in North Carolina. Mr. Griswold said no, it was national.  
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell said they had good responses on page 7/8, but they 
struggled to capture responses in the past from lower income brackets. She said it seemed like 
the “less than high school graduates” were fewer of the respondents. Mr. Griswold said age 
and income were somewhat consistent with the previous year, and they would work with the 
vendor. He said income and age would vary from year to year. She thanked them and said it 
was a great report.  



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 
Commissioner Townsend-Ingram thanked the staff and presenter and said one of her priorities 
was communicating county services to the community better. She asked how the surveys were 
being presented to people and said she was concerned with the digital divide. She said the ones 
it impacted were not being surveyed. She asked if they were leaving out an entire group of 
people and said how the question was phrased would determine the response as opposed to 
why they felt that way. She said she wanted to see equity in how they were getting the survey 
out so they could get an honest response, and asked if it was skewed. Mr. Griswold said their 
vendor selected random households and would mail it to them. He said if they didn’t receive it 
back, they would also try to contact over the phone to complete it or online if they preferred. He 
said with the distinction of towns/cities, they included a cover sheet that provided an 
explanation.  
 
Commissioner Griffin asked if it reflected Mecklenburg County’s population at large, regarding 
slides 6-8. He asked if it would be better to have comparisons of counties to Mecklenburg’s 
population. He asked why, on slides 16-20, they segregated the environmental issues as 
opposed to community issues being discretionary issues. He said he wasn’t sure what they 
referred to when they mentioned racially equitable and asked how they interpreted that 
question. He said his final recommendation would be to put workforce development at the top 
as the current program was fractured with no alignment, and they would benefit as a 
community if they could afford to buy houses. He said they needed to figure out how to get 
people in a position to afford living. Mr. Griswold said there were future opportunities, but the 
largest group available was the 250,000. He said they asked what their most important issue 
was but also asked what some of their environmental issues were. 
 
Commissioner Powell thanked the presenter and asked to see the coversheet listing the 
differences between counties, towns, and cities. She agreed that if they spent every county 
dollar on affordable housing, it would still not be enough. She said there were departments that 
needed more and asked how they could begin to tackle some of those that were outside of 
their lane. 
 
Commissioner Leaker thanked the presenter and asked how they communicated with the 
public. She said they should say how would it impact the change/changes in Mecklenburg 
County and suggested they had a town hall meeting to share the information and follow it up 
with the survey.  
 
Commissioner Dunlap said workforce development was fractured and everyone wanted to be 
responsible for it but not in charge. He said he advocated for it, but the County didn’t focus on 
it. He said there was an organization called Charlotte Works that focused on it. He said overall, 
it was a good report and the kind of concern they needed to address was where they got the 
information. He said there weren’t a lot of large counties doing this, so it was difficult to 
compare Mecklenburg County to others. He said he wasn’t happy with homelessness being the 
8th most important thing out of 8 issues, and they needed to focus on it, but the community 
wasn’t interested. He said it was their responsibility to focus on the issue.  
 
Commissioner Altman said there was so much positive information, and the data highlighted 
the fact that the numbers for those with low income were not good. She said they needed to be 
smart and suggested creating 10 metrics they would like to focus on.  
 
Chair Jerrell thanked the presenter and said the real question was how they were going to use 
the information and what their response would be. He said the upward trend was the result of 
focus. He said he would like to see a clearer picture of where the community was at so that 
when they went into the retreat, they understood what the community was saying.  
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Altman, seconded by Commissioner Powell, and carried 8-
1, with Commissioners Griffin, Dunlap, Townsend-Ingram, Rodriguez-McDowell, Meier, and 
Chair Jerrell voting yes and Commissioner Leake voting no to extend the meeting 30 minutes. 



Meeting Minutes 

December 10, 2024   

 
24-0699  COMMISSIONER REPORTS 
 
 
Commissioners shared information of their choosing within the guidelines as established by the 
Board, which included, but not limited to, past and/or upcoming events. 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
With no further business to come before the Board, Chair Jerrell declared the meeting 
adjourned at 5:06 p.m. 
 
 
 

            
______________________________ ____________________________ 
Arlissa Eason, Deputy Clerk to the Board                                       Mark Jerrell, Chair 
 


